MUR805200104

FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION

WASHINGTON, D.C.

April 29, 2024

VIA ELECTRONIC MAIL

mlweisel@caplawgrp.com, cpatterson@caplawgrp.com
Michael L. Weisel, Esquire & Courtney Patterson, Esquire
Capital Law Group

1101 Haynes Street, Suite 205

Raleigh, NC 27602-0121

RE: MUR 8052
American Muckrakers PAC

Dear Mr. Weisel and Ms. Patterson:

On August 15, 2022, the Federal Election Commission notified your client, American
Muckrakers PAC (the “Committee”), of a complaint alleging violations of certain sections of the
Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended (the “Act”). A copy of the complaint was
forwarded to your client at that time.

Upon further review of the allegations contained in the complaint, and information
supplied by your client, the Commission, on March 28, 2024, voted to dismiss this matter and
close the file effective April 29, 2024. The General Counsel’s Report, which more fully explains
the Commission’s decision, is enclosed for your information.

Documents related to the case will be placed on the public record today. See Disclosure
of Certain Documents in Enforcement and Other Matters, 81 Fed. Reg. 50,702 (Aug. 2, 2016).

Sincerely,

Lisa J. Stevenson
Acting General Counsel

BY: Wanda D. Brown
Assistant General Counsel
Enclosure
General Counsel’s Report
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MUR805200105

BEFORE THE FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION

ENFORCEMENT PRIORITY SYSTEM
DISMISSAL REPORT

MUR: 8052 Respondent: American Muckrakers PAC and
David Wheeler in his official

capacity as treasurer

Complaint Receipt Date: August 12, 2022
Response Date: October 17,2022

EPS Rating:
Alleged Statutory and
Regulatory Violations: 52 U.S.C. §§ 30104(b), (g); 30120(a)
11 C.F.R. §§ 100.16; 102.5(a)(2); 104.4;
110.11(a)-(c)

The Complaint alleges that American Muckrakers PAC and David Wheeler in his official
capacity as treasurer (the “Committee’), an independent expenditure-only political committee,
did not report independent expenditures (“IEs”) related to its efforts to defeat Lauren Boebert, a
candidate in the 2022 election for Colorado’s Third Congressional District, and failed to include
required disclaimers on advertising and solicitation materials, in violation of the Federal Election
Campaign Act of 1971, as amended (the “Act”).! The Complaint alleges that the Committee
created a website, fireboebert.com, videos, and other communications that expressly advocated
the defeat of Boebert and explicitly supported her primary opponent Don Coram.?

The Complaint alleges that the Committee did not disclose the costs of the website, its

content development, or social media distribution as IEs made against Boebert, nor did the

website and social media communications contain the required disclaimers stating that the

! Compl. at 1 (Aug. 12, 2022).

2 1d. at 2, Ex. B (“No. Second. Term. For. Lauren. Boebert.” “Don Coram is a safe alternative.” “Help us
FIRE Congresswoman Lauren Boebert” “Vote for Colorado Senator Don Coram for Congress.” “Vote for Don
Coram in order to #FireBoebert!”).
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MUR 8052 (American Muckrakers PAC)
EPS Dismissal Report
Page 2 of 4

communications were not authorized by any candidate.® Further, the Complaint alleges that the
Committee failed to inform donors that their contributions would be used in connection with a
federal election or that the contributions are subject to the limitations and prohibitions of the
Act.* The Complaint states the Committee’s disclosure reports include disbursements for text-
messaging services on its 2022 Pre-Primary Report totaling $1,928.15, and though Complainant
does not have copies of the text messages, alleges that it is “likely that the messages expressly
advocated against Rep. Boebert,” and therefore should have been reported as IEs.>

In response to the Complaint, the Committee states that it did not report an IE for the
creation, maintenance, and content of the website because such activity does not constitute an
IE.% The Committee states that its treasurer created the website and that there were no third party
payments, expenditures, or contracts with vendors, and no paid advertising or placement fees on
social media.” The Committee argues that the URL of the website, fireboebert.com, is not
express advocacy because it does not contain the words associated with express advocacy
communications.® The Committee also states that the social media posts and videos at issue
appeared only on its website and the Committee’s social media pages, and while available to the
public, were not “distributed” to voters.” Regarding the missing disclaimer on its website, the
Committee states that the treasurer was unfamiliar with a platform used to create and host the

website, Wix, and accidentally displayed the disclaimers as a footer in “hidden mode” but that

3 Compl. at 2.

4 1d.

5 1d.

6 Resp. at 1 (Oct. 17, 2022).
7 1d.

8 1d.

i Resp. at 2.
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the problem has since been corrected.!® The Committee disclosed disbursements totaling $1,164
to Wix during the 2022 election cycle.!! The Committee disclosed disbursements totaling
$5,488.75 with a description containing “web” during the 2022 election cycle.!?

Regarding solicitations, the Committee states that the exhibits in the Complaint show a
landing page prior to the donation page, and that disclaimers are present on all platforms where
the Committee solicits contributions.!® Attached to the Response are exhibits showing the
Committee’s donation pages on its websites and on donation platforms with disclaimers. !#
Further, the Committee asserts that the text messages it sent are not IEs but are fundraising
solicitations, and that the expenses associated with the text messages were disclosed as
disbursements.!®> The Committee disclosed disbursements totaling $1,928.15 to Simple Texting
with the description “text messaging services” during the 2022 election cycle. '

Based on its experience and expertise, the Commission has established an Enforcement
Priority System using formal, pre-determined scoring criteria to allocate agency resources and
assess whether particular matters warrant further administrative enforcement proceedings. These

criteria include (1) the gravity of the alleged violation, taking into account both the type of

10 Id.

1 See American Muckrakers PAC, Filtered Disbursements, FEC.GOV, https://www.fec.gov/data/
disbursements/?data type=processed&committee id=C00776062&recipient name=Wix&two year transaction per
10d=2022 (last visited Mar. 15, 2024).

12 See American Muckrakers PAC, Filtered Disbursements, FEC.GOV, https:/www.fec.gov/data/
disbursements/?data type=processed&committee id=C00776062&two vyear transaction period=2022&disburseme
nt description=web (last visited Mar. 15, 2024).

13 Resp. at 2.

14 1d.; Ex. 1-6.

15 1d.

16 See American Muckrakers PAC, Filtered Disbursements, FEC.GOV, https://www.fec.gov/data/

disbursements/?data_type=processed&committee_id=C00776062&recipient name=Simple+Texting&two_year_tra
nsaction_period=2022 (last visited Mar. 5, 2024).
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activity and the amount in violation; (2) the apparent impact the alleged violation may have had
on the electoral process; (3) the complexity of the legal issues raised in the matter; and (4) recent
trends in potential violations and other developments in the law. This matter is rated as low
priority for Commission action after application of these pre-established criteria. Given that low
rating and apparent low dollar amount at issue, we recommend that the Commission dismiss the
Complaint consistent with the Commission’s prosecutorial discretion to determine the proper
ordering of its priorities and use of agency resources.!” We also recommend that the
Commission close the file effective 30 days from the date of certification of this vote (or on the
next business day after the 30th day, if the 30th day falls on a weekend or holiday) and send the
appropriate letters.

Lisa J. Stevenson

Acting General Counsel

Charles Kitcher
Associate General Counsel

Mar. 18, 2024 BY:
Date Claudio J. Pavia
Deputy Associate General Counsel

Wanda D. Brown
Assistant General Counsel

Gordon King
Attorney

17 See Heckler v. Chaney, 470 U.S. 821, 831-32 (1985).
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	MUR8052
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	1050 First Street, NE Washington, DC 20463 Sent via US. Mail and email to: 
	EnfComplaint@fec.gov 

	This Complaint is filed against American Muckrakers PAC, Inc., FEC ID C00776062 for substantial and numerous violations ofthe federal election campaign laws and Federal Election Commission regulations. The violations are summarized below and evidence substantiating ach violation is attached. 
	I. Introduction 
	American Muckrakers PAC, Inc. ("PAC") has violated federal campaign laws and regulations by failing to properly report independent expenditures and failing to include required disclaimers on PAC adve1iising and solicitation materials. These violations occuned as paii ofthe PAC's aggressive engagement on federal candidate elections through its website, press releases, and social media posts. Most recently, the PAC expressly advocated for the defeat of Lauren Boebe1i in Colorado's Third Congressional District
	As detailed below, these violations include failure to repo1i independent expenditures in violation of 11 CFR § 104.4, failure to include required independent expenditure disclaimers in violation of 11 CFR § 110.11, and failure to include required solicitation disclaimers in violation of 11 CFR § 102.5. 
	II. 
	II. 
	II. 
	Violations 

	A. 
	A. 
	Independent Expenditures 


	The PAC has created and maintains this website, the PAC expressly advocated the defeat ofRep. Boebe1i in the June 28, 2022, primaiy election. The website contained the explicit words "fire Lauren Boebe1i" to advocate her defeat and is subject to the only reasonable interpretation that it advocated a vote against Rep. Boebe1i in the primaiy election. See Exhibit A. 
	the website https://www.fireboebert.com/. On 

	FEC Complaint: Muckrakers Page 2 
	The PAC created a video and other communications that it distributed to voters via the website and social media posts in the weeks prior to the primary election that expressly advocated against Rep. Boebert, explicitly supporting Rep. Boebert’s primary opponent by stating “Vote for Colorado Senator Don Coram for Congress” and also urging “No. Second. Term. For. Lauren. Boebert.” “@AdamForColorado can win and we like him a lot!  Please follow him and support him.” See Exhibit B. There is a substantial amount
	The PAC did not disclose independent expenditures on its FEC Reports of Receipts and Disbursements for this website, content development, or social media distribution as independent expenditures made against Rep. Boebert. In addition, the PAC’s website and social media communications omitted the required disclaimer stating that the communication was not authorized by any candidate. 
	B. Fundraising Solicitations 
	The PAC solicits contributions on its website via direct donation and donations in exchange for a t-shirt. See Exhibit D. The PAC fails to state the disclaimer that the communication was not authorized by any candidate and fails to inform donors that their contributions will be used in connection with a federal election or that they are subject to the limitations and prohibitions of the Federal Election Campaign Act. 
	Furthermore, we have submitted notice to the Internal Revenue Service that the PAC violated Section 6113 of the Internal Revenue Code requiring political committees to include a special notice on solicitations informing solicitees that their contributions are not tax deductible. 
	C. Text Communications 
	The PAC’s recent reports include disclosure of expenditures for “text messaging services.” See American Muckrakers PAC Pre-Primary report, FEC-1602933, filed 06/16/2022. While I am not in receipt of any texts sent on behalf of the PAC, it is likely that the messages expressly advocated against Rep. Boebert given the other activities and the PAC’s mission of having its “sights are set on Lauren Bobert” [sic]. Exhibit E. The FEC can obtain these text message communications to determine whether these PAC-funde
	III. Conclusion 
	Muckrakers registered with the FEC as an independent expenditure committee and engaged in express advocacy and electioneering communications without filing required disclosures and including required disclaimers. This letter details specific violations under the FEC’s jurisdiction and requests that the FEC investigate the full scope of violations. 
	FEC Complaint: Muckrakers Page 3 
	Muckrakers is not an inexperienced organization that inadvertently failed to comply with legal requirements. This is a well-funded and sophisticated political organization.  FEC reports show the organization retained campaign counsel and has engaged in multiple federal elections. Muckrakers pays high retainer amounts to its professional political consultant/PAC President and Treasurer, David Wheeler. Despite all of this, Muckrakers chose not to comply with basic federal campaign finance rules. Muckrakers co
	Muckrakers routinely makes false claims against federal candidates and their families to serve its partisan political objectives. It is critical that the public have access to who is responsible for this activity through legally required disclaimers and reporting. Muckrakers chose not to report or disclose its political activity as required by law and it is imperative that the FEC complete an enforcement action to address Muckrakers substantial legal violations. 
	Thank you for your prompt attention to this ongoing FEC non-compliance matter. 
	Sincerely, 
	Jonathan M. Anderson 
	State of Colorado County of ____________________ Signed and sworn to before me on _______________________, 20____ by __________________________________ (name(s) of individual(s) making statement). ____________________________________ (Notary’s official signature) ____________________________________ (Title of office) ____________________________________ (Commission Expiration) 
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	(970) 610-6001 
	Our mailing address is: American Muckrakers PAC, Inc. PO Box 51 Spruce Pine, NC 28777-0051 
	©2022 by American Muckrakers PAC, Inc. 
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	Lauren Boebert Was a Paid Escort and Had Two Abortions 
	Lauren Boebert Was a Paid Escort and Had Two Abortions 
	Figure
	Read our Press Release on Lauren Boebert's Escort Career and Abortions 
	Read our Press Release on Lauren Boebert's Escort Career and Abortions 
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	FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE 
	REP. LAUREN BOEBERTWASAN UNLICENSED PAID ESCORT wrtH AND llAD 1WO ABOR'TIONS 
	REP. LAUREN BOEBERTWASAN UNLICENSED PAID ESCORT wrtH AND llAD 1WO ABOR'TIONS 
	SUGARDADDYMEET.COM 

	8088 1!RT MET SENATOR T8D CRUZ IN ASPEN THROUGH TNTRQDUC'fll)N BY KOCl-f FAMJT.V MnTIIUER & "Cl.JENT'' 
	BORllllRT BAD AN ABORTION AT PLANNED PARENTHOOD IN GLENW OOD SPRINGS, COWRADO DUE 1'0 umt WORK W)TU 
	SUGARDADDYMJ!El'.COM 

	June 14; .2022 • $1LT, COlDRADO: Thte.Am<:titaL1 Muckrtikt.1·s PAC, In¢., 1oday announcc.,d l~ir team and l'(Jluuleers lia,,e unco1•c1'0d lhal l.i.\d·cn Boobez·l was on unlicensed, paid cscorl and mel elienls throug~ Text messuges show she was b<1nkrupt at the time and lool1ing for "side incoine" and called her \\/'Ori< ..pay lo play.... She was paid to "'est-ort" v.1ealU1.y men 
	SugarDnddyM.eet.com. 

	Acoording to our investigation. Boeberl ,vas hired by a wealthy male client in Aspen, Colorado, \"110 ,..-as a Xoch ramlly membel'. Boebert's rich client subsi,quently i!llrodueed her to U.S. Sen.I.tor-Ted Ctt11. (R-TX) 1J1 Aspen. Alter mecling with Senator Cruz, Boobert wn$enoouragedby Cruz to run for political oftlee. When Boebert 1u1nouno.,..J her campaign for Cc;mgres.'5 in Docernbcr 2-019, Senator Cru1: dc;m;d e.d al le..t!d to lhc Bocbcrt campaign and hclpcd her raise lafllc sums ofmoney during triPS 
	S136,250.00 
	S70,soo.oo 
	Cornnii-ssion filings eonlradicted her 

	1n 2004 or2005 when :she \'\'a.S opp·oxima1cly eighteen years oJd. It i< not known whether this ab<>rlion w-a& rclated to clieots or someone e1'e. 11,en. Boeber~ 1wc111)1-lhrce at the rime, hod an obortion in 2009 a I th~ Planned Parcnlh60d Clinic in Glenwood S£lt'i..ngS, Color.ido, "due. to her w01'.k wilh a SugarDaddyMcct.comclicnt". 
	Boebert bad an abortion .at a clinic in Grand Junction, Colorado. $0metlme
	SugarDoddyMcet.com 
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	(continued) 
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	Muckn1kers PAC, Tnc, s.a:Jd the fo!lowlog: 
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	t..'Or.er

	-Boc"berthadtwo abortions but says othurwomen shouldntr-be able to makethis docisio11. -Bocbertwas an ,\7Vin Moo.band had c serious wreck with ltei son in the back and her
	drfvin.g · 
	sister-iu-luw ;ssn .-.erirmsfy injure,J#,h~bux lo f,efloum i r, the hu!ipil'1I uiu lifej1ig'11. 
	-Boaben does11'l rcporl the aooide,u as requfred blJ mah law cmd dicn acciucly wor-ks to cover up the accident two weeks before the primary election, including paying her siste1"-in-Iaw offto nmu1in !iUl!.nt. 
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	Note From FireBoebert.Com Team 
	Note From FireBoebert.Com Team 

	We make no judgement about Boebert's abortions. That is her right as a woman in Colorado 
	However. we are reporting on the unbelievable hypocrisy of her railing against women that want that same right. Boebert has consistently been against woman in Colorado and the entire country having the same rights to make their own healthcare decisions 
	In addition. we don't take a position about the propr1ety of being a paid escort and respect any men or women that choose this career. However. escorts are regulated in Colorado and must register under state law. We hove searched and requested to see her registration without success. If Boebert has an escort registration we will correct our story and apologize to Boebert However. we aren't holding our breath 
	Finally. no one at Planned Parenthood or any other medical practice anywhere provided Boebert's medical records or violated HIPAA rules. We did not consult with or receive any tips from any medical providers. staff. admins. technicians. etc. Nor did we hack or receive any medical records or obtain any information in such a way that would violate any Colorado or U.S. laws We hove never seen any of Boebert's medical records 
	All the facts came from a source we trust and others on our team know. We verified the abortion claims with another source We stand by our story We've not seen nor heard anything that would refute our allegations If we do. we'll let you know 
	After reviewing several dates with our sources. at 8:30 PM on June 14. 2022. we revised our press release to include specifK: dates of Boebert's abortions and the specif>C donation amounts from Ted Cruz Previously, we had round f,gures for the donations given to us by our source and didn't include any years for the abortions 
	In addition. we posted an updated press release on June 15. 2022. at 544 PM. without a picture we have been told is someone else. We hove contacted the Daily Mail to confirm the identity of the photo as our source still claims it ts Boebert 
	Let's Chat! 
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	Messages Confirming Boebert Was a Paid Escort & Met Koch Family Member on 
	SugarDaddyMeet.com 

	Source: Our source requested we not reveal their name, location, or any other information. 
	Note: The screenshots are the actual text messages in sequential order from our source to team. Several texts were excluded or part of them excluded to protect their identity. In no case did we edit the actual text sent by our source. 
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	Lauren Boebert's Drunken 4X4 Wreck with Son in Vehicle 



	Exclusive Details Revealed Here 
	Exclusive Details Revealed Here 
	Boebert nearly killed her sister-in-law during a drunk driving accident while driving a 4X4 in Moab, Utah. 
	Boebert Begged Sister-in-Law to Say Nothing and Covered Up the Accident Utah and Colorado Officials requested to investigate Boebert for "Reckless Child Abuse" for drinking and driving. 
	Below are all the details and our press release. 
	Below are all the details and our press release. 
	You must watch this with volume up. 
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	;m1 A►ud io of Tic Tac Tow in Moab, UT Confirming Accident 
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	Listen to Tori Hooper ... 
	► • 0000 I 07:03 
	Let's Chat! 
	,-!--I -· ·---..,_ -L _ _.... 
	https://www.fireboebert.com/drunklauren 
	https://www.fireboebert.com/drunklauren 
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	©2022 by American Muckrakers PAC, Inc. 
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	Boebert Abortions Tax Fraud Mike Bishop Drunk Lauren Jayson Donate More 
	The Mike Bishop Episodes 
	About 
	On June 1, 2022, one of our team called Mike Bishop to learn more about the plane he sold Lauren and Jayson Boebert. What unfolded was a series of more than 15 calls over the course of a week. During the calls Mike brags about his access to Lauren, how she will do whatever he 
	says, and lots of details about the plane, Lauren and Jayson's money, and politics in Colorado. 
	This is the sort of supporter Boebert has in Colorado. We hope you'll listen and share with other voters in Colorado and vote Boebert out. 
	We'll be posting new episodes every couple days. Enjoy. 
	Donate to Fire Boebert Here 
	Figure

	Mike Bishop -Episode One: 
	Mike Bishop -Episode One: 
	TheN Word 
	TheN Word 
	What fallows is an excerpt from the first call between our team member and Mike Bishop. During the call he explains why Lauren Boebert bought the plane, describes Jayson Boebert using the "N" word and other details about the plane. Also included, China, Nancy Pelosi, Hunter Biden, guns, and more. 
	-Mike Bishop: Episode 1 -The "N" Word ~ ► • • :00 /06:49 
	00

	Donate to Fire Boebert Here 


	Episode 2 -"I would bend her over my knee and paddle her ..." 
	Episode 2 -"I would bend her over my knee and paddle her ..." 
	Mike is fired up in this episode. We talk about whether Boebert is flying drugs in her airplane. Let's Chat! 
	https://www.fireboebert.com/mike 
	https://www.fireboebert.com/mike 
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	kid" and that former Congressman Tipton is a "... piece of shit, that did nothing for anyone..." Ed Wilkerson elected her according to Mike. Enjoy. 
	-Mike Bishop Episodes 2 
	-► • •:00/11:40 
	00

	Bishop -Episode 3: Elaine Chao, and kicking on people out of USA..." 
	Bishop -Episode 3: Elaine Chao, and kicking on people out of USA..." 
	s a series of charges against the LGBTQ . I actua lly defend Elaine Chao, and he nd 80 million people to the Ukraine. 
	Mike Bishop ep 3 
	► • • 00:00 / 08:49 
	Donate to Fire Boebert Here 
	Fire Lauren Boebert 
	Fire Lauren Boebert 
	or (970) 610-6001 Our mailing address is: American Muckrakers PAC, Inc. PO Box 51 Spruce Pine. NC 28777-0051 
	info@fireboebert.com 
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	FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE -EXCLUSIVE 
	REP. LI\UREN BOEBERT UNDER INVESTIGATION FORTAX FRAUD AND MONEY LAUNDERING 
	COLORADO ATIORNliY GENERAL REFERS OUR COMPLAIN'l'1'0 OEPARTMEN1. OF REVENUE AND DEPARTMENT 01: LABOR AND EMPLOYMENT FOR [NVESTIGA"MON 
	BOEIJ£R'l' CREA113U 1'1-US PROBl,EM • NO·r ANYONE ELS£ SHE MUST TAKE RESl'ONSIBILITV FOR HERACl'IONS 
	June8, 2022-SILT,COLORADO: The AmeriC«ln Muckrakers PAC. Inc., t0<fay announcL>d their team and volunteers h(lve uncovered that L:lurcn Boebert is under inl'e~tigtttion by theColor.1do Dl.'flartmeut of Revenue :1nd the Colon1do Department of Labor and Employment nficr II referral from the Colorado Attorney General's Criminal Division on June 7, 2022. 
	Boebert is accused offalsifying mileage records to pay herselffrom donations and U1e11 usa thaL cash to pay off a lax lien pince<! on her b1t~incss by the Colorado Dcparttnent of L.,bor am! t::mploymcnt for 11111111id uneniploymcnt insmauce premiums. 
	Duvid B. Wheeler, PresiclentorAmerican M11clm1kcrs PAC, Inc, said the following: 
	'·Colorado dtimns shoul<l be disg11s11?d with larmm BtJebcrt. l.in1re11 Boebcrt creuted this problem on /rer· 11wn und isftn(ll/y 9Qi11g to b11 held ac,•u1mt" b/r, '11iis i~ rulrat h11pJ1CIIS 1uhrn y,m ekct a clown thut c:,m't coon 1x1y her emJJloyees money owaci u, them or pay tire op,>mpl'iate ta.\'e.~. Sire sho11ld be ashamed oj' her octions otr<I inrmc'(/iutoly upolu11b.e tu her,fr)nne,· ump(uyet'S tmcl tire citiu111; vfCQ/01-q(/o, 
	111e libanit me,lin 01· ow PAC didn't r:auer up this uital infumtalio11 when ii ooc111·,·ed. Tl was Law-en IJoelxwl one/ herstaj]t/iat coue,•ed it up.11iey arc aooou11tablcfor this illegalactivity. Why didn't Rcp. JJocbert disclose this inform<1tion 1mdp11hlicly apnloyiw to the uictims? 71w mrsiu(!J· is rlwi-Lmrrcn 8oc/J11ri-,J11st like Madison Cawthorn, never tokes rcspo11sibilihJfor her bac/judgment. 771is is 1101 thefirst time she has /iC{f to Colorada11s a11d won't be the lust. 
	ow,coalition qfRe1111l,licom;, De111oc:ro1s a11d U11affiliMi!<l Color11<la1111 ar,1 1,r9i11g all 1Mter.~ Clllfl citize1111 to 1·eview tire1lucume11/s we·uefilert, then ask JJuebert wiry she <."Uuer•ed up this ilfogul cwtiuity amt used rtu1101· 111011ey toJiay he,· taxes? W£' hopl! ll(lters will lwlp 11sfire JJoebel'l by supporting Von Conunfor Congress. Hes .~a11e 011<1 pays his tctres 011 time, L'Ve111 time. 
	Anyone that uses donor money to pay thei,· taxes is not.fit to hold public office. W'e hope voters willfire 1J11cbert (n tire ,June 28, 2.022, J>rfmcrry election 1md elect 0011 Coram.
	-

	'1111, tlocume.nlJ; ~•n hedow11IQ=1de<l >1t: Firel!oeherl,cum/t:;xfrau<l 
	,\mcricon Mudm1kcrs PAC, Inc, conloct: (971>) C,10-6001 orpre~firwnadbon,corn 
	More about American Muckrakers PAC, Inc.: ~luckn1kers l'AC. Inc., i~o illlll·pMlil politi<::iluction cnrnm11tee dcrlica1cd solely to ensuring ton·iblq polilic:inns arc held nccouma.blc and ho1icfully fired. Onr firsl fight was :igninsl R~11. Mntlison Ca"l\111Qrn CrircMadison.rom); he ,ra.~ fired on May , 202~. O\lr current fight is ai;,1i1m L.111n1n lloch~rt. We an: 11n l·l!.C registered S11pe1• PAC. For n1orc lnfor.,n~1io11 about 1is: l''ircMadiso11.eom ~nd l'ircllocbcr1.ccm1. 
	Ame1i<:.1n 
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	Colorado to Examine Laurer1 
	Colorado to Examine Laurer1 
	Let's Chat! 
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	fraud co1nplaint fron1 the group that targeted 
	Representative Madison Cawtho111, in a sign of 
	trouble for the first-tenn congresswoman. 
	Let's Chat! 
	https://www.fireboebert.com/taxfraud 
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	Fire Lauren Boebert 
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	or (970) 610-6001 Our mailing address is: American Muckrakers PAC, Inc. PO Box 51 Spruce Pine, NC 28777-0051 
	info@fireboebert.com 
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	0 
	DONATE TO FIRE LAUREN BOEBERT 
	We fired Madison Cawthorn. We're going to fire Lauren Boebert too. Please donate today. Your funds will go towards ensuring Boebert is fired on June 28. 2022. 
	Donate Any Amount Via Pay Pal 
	Donate $10 Via Apple Pay Donate S25 Via Apple Pay Donate SlOO Via Apple Pay 

	Fire Lauren Boebert 
	Fire Lauren Boebert 
	Figure
	or (970) 610-6001 Our mailing address is: American Muckrakers PAC, Inc. PO Box 51 Spruce Pine, NC 28777-0051 
	info@fireboebert.com 

	©2022 by American Muckrakers PAC, Inc. 
	Let's Chat! 
	bttps://www .fireboebert.com/donate 
	7/13/22, 10:20 AM Donate 
	American Muckrakers 
	ru ll'! f:1 r00 1i; Sl nr. 1,1 2Cl1 
	Donate to 

	American Muckrakers PAC lnc.o 
	American Muckrakers PAC lnc.o 
	We fired Madison Cawthorn. Now it's Lauren Boebert's turn. Please help us with a donation todayMore: FireBoebertcom 
	$50 $100 $250 
	Other
	USD USD USD 
	Add $0.00 to help cover the fees. Make this a monthly donation 8 
	0 
	0 

	( fi Donate with PayPal _____) 
	( _____o_o_n_a_t_e_w_i_th_D_e_b_it_o_r_c_r_e_d_it_c_a_r_d____) 
	Cancel and return to American Muckrakers PAC Inc. 
	Cancel and return to American Muckrakers PAC Inc. 
	We'll use cookies to improve and customize your experience if you continue to browse. Is it OK if we also use cookies to show you personalized ads? Learn more and manage ,Y.OUr cookies 
	Yes, Accept Cookies 
	bttps://www.paypal.com/donate/?hosted_button_id=FVJTI62CSM3JA 
	7/13/22, 10:20 AM Donate 
	©1999-2022 PayPal, Inc. All rights reserved. 
	Privacy Legal Policy updates 
	We’ll use cookies to improve and customize your experience if you continue to browse. Is it OK if we also use cookies to show you personalized ads? Learn more and manage your cookies 
	Figure
	https://www.paypal.com/donate/?hosted_button_id=FVJTT62CSM3JA 
	https://www.paypal.com/donate/?hosted_button_id=FVJTT62CSM3JA 
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	Fire Boebert Shirts Available Now! $25 Donation Only! 
	Fire Boebert Shirts Available Now! $25 Donation Only! 
	Figure
	Let's Chat! 
	CLICK HERE TO BUY SHIRT 
	bttps://www .fireboebert.com/shirts 
	7/13/22, 10:21 AM 
	Shirts I FireBoebert.com 

	Figure
	V
	EN 
	Sources Boebert Abortions Tax Fraud Shirts Mike Bishop Drunk Lauren More 
	Figure
	or 
	1mocgmreooeoert.com 

	(970) 610-6001 
	Our mailing address is: American Muckrakers PAC, Inc. PO Box 51 Spruce Pine, NC 28777-0051 
	©2022 by American Muckrakers PAC, Inc. 
	Let's Chat! 
	bttps://www .fireboebert.com/shirts 
	7/13/22, 10:22 AM Donate 
	Figure
	Donate to 
	American Muckrakers PAC Inc.• 
	American Muckrakers PAC Inc.• 
	Donate $25 --get a Fire Boebert t-shirt! Postage/handling included. Please let us know requested size in the comment section. 

	$25.00 
	$25.00 
	USD Add $1.01 to help cover the fees. 
	0 

	( ______fl Donate with PayPal ) 
	( _____D_o_n_a_t_e_w_i_th_D_e_b_it_o_r_c_r_e_d_it_c_a_r_d____) 
	Cancel and return to American Muckrakers PAC Inc. 
	Cancel and return to American Muckrakers PAC Inc. 
	We'll use cookies to improve and customize your experience if you continue to browse. Is it OK if we also use cookies to show you personalized ads? Learn more and manage ,Y.OUr cookies 
	Yes, Accept Cookies 
	bttps://www.paypal.com/donate/?hosted_button_id=3WDA62Q8532EN 
	7/13/22, 10:22 AM Donate 
	Help & Contact Security Report Inappropriate Content Feedback 
	©1999-2022 PayPal, Inc. All rights reserved. 
	Privacy Legal Policy updates 
	We’ll use cookies to improve and customize your experience if you continue to browse. Is it OK if we also use cookies to show you personalized ads? Learn more and manage your cookies 
	Figure
	https://www.paypal.com/donate/?hosted_button_id=3WDA62Q8532EN 
	https://www.paypal.com/donate/?hosted_button_id=3WDA62Q8532EN 
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	(last visited July 12, 2022). 
	https://www.facebook.com/FireRepLaurenBoebert 
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	FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION 
	WASHINGTON, D.C. 20463 
	August 15, 2022 
	VIA EMAIL 
	VIA EMAIL 

	fec@cfoconsults.com 
	fec@cfoconsults.com 
	fec@cfoconsults.com 
	david@firemadison.com 


	David Wheeler, Treasurer American Muckrakers PAC PO Box 51 Spruce Pine, NC 28777 
	RE:  MUR 8052 
	Dear Mr. Wheeler: 
	The Federal Election Commission (FEC) received a complaint that indicates American Muckrakers PAC and you in your official capacity as treasurer may have violated the Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended (the “Act”).  A copy of the complaint is enclosed.  We have numbered this matter MUR 8052.  Please refer to this number in all future correspondence. 
	The Act affords you the opportunity to demonstrate in writing that no action should be taken against American Muckrakers PAC and you in your official capacity as treasurer in this matter.  If you wish to file a response, you may submit any factual or legal materials that you believe are relevant to the Commission’s consideration of this matter.  Where appropriate, statements should be submitted under oath by persons with relevant knowledge.  Your response, which should be addressed to the General Counsel’s 
	This matter will remain confidential in accordance with 52 U.S.C. § 30109(a)(4)(B) and § 30109(a)(12)(A) unless you notify the Commission in writing that you wish the matter to be made public.  Please be advised that, although the Commission cannot disclose information regarding an investigation to the public, it may share information on a confidential basis with other law enforcement agencies.
	1 

	If you intend to be represented by counsel in this matter, please advise the Commission by completing the enclosed form stating the name, address and telephone number of such counsel, and authorizing such counsel to receive any notifications and other communications from the Commission.  Please note that you have a legal obligation to preserve all documents, records, and materials relating to the subject matter of the complaint until such time as you are notified that the Commission has closed its file in t
	The Commission has the statutory authority to refer knowing and willful violations of the Act to the Department of Justice for potential criminal prosecution, 52 U.S.C. § 30109(a)(5)(C), and to report information regarding violations of law not within its jurisdiction to appropriate law enforcement authorities. Id. § 30107(a)(9). 
	Any correspondence sent to the Commission, such as a response, must be addressed to one of the following (note, if submitting via email this Office will provide an electronic receipt 
	by email): 
	by email): 
	by email): 

	Mail 
	Mail 
	OR 
	Email 

	Federal Election Commission Office of Complaints Examination & Legal Administration Attn:  Kathryn Ross, Paralegal 1050 First Street, NE Washington, DC 20463 
	Federal Election Commission Office of Complaints Examination & Legal Administration Attn:  Kathryn Ross, Paralegal 1050 First Street, NE Washington, DC 20463 
	cela@fec.gov 


	As indicated in the FEC’s Notice found at , the FEC has largely resumed normal mail operations, but please be advised that processing paper correspondence may be delayed.  Accordingly, we strongly encourage you to file responses and additional correspondence via email. 
	resources/enforcement/complaints-process/how-to-file-complaint-with-fec/
	https://www.fec.gov/legal
	-


	If you have any questions, please contact Kathryn Ross at (202) 694-1539.  For your information, we have enclosed a brief description of the Commission’s procedures for handling complaints. 
	Sincerely, 
	Figure
	Roy Q. Luckett Acting Assistant General Counsel Complaints Examination & Legal Administration 
	Roy Q. Luckett Acting Assistant General Counsel Complaints Examination & Legal Administration 
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	RECEIVED By OGC-CELA at 4:12 pm, Aug 19, 2022 

	From: To: Cc: Subject: Date: 
	From: To: Cc: Subject: Date: 
	David Wheeler {FireMadison.com) CELA Michael L. Weisel; Allison Murray Re: MUR 8052 Federal Election Commission Complaint Notification Friday, August 19, 2022 11:59:50 AM 


	Ms. Ross -We are requesting an extension to October 15, 2022, to file a response. Our legal counsel, Mr. Michael Weisel, is out of the country until September 25, 2022, and unable to attend to this matter until he returns. I've cc Mr. Weisel on this email and he can confirm his out of country travel if needed. 
	Please let me know if you have any questions. 
	Kind Regards, David 
	David B. Wheeler, President American Muckrakers PAC () 
	FireMadison.com

	FireMadison com 
	Donate Here Twitter: @fire_madison Instagram: @firepbmadison Facebook: @FireMadisonCawthorn 

	[al:~ 
	[al:~ 
	MADISON 
	CAWTHORN 
	CAWTHORN 
	Mil·li:P• ili· l'l♦UMM 
	BEFORE THE FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION 
	) 
	) 
	) 

	) 
	) 

	American Muckrakers PAC 
	American Muckrakers PAC 
	) 
	MUR 8052 

	David Wheeler, in his official as treasurer 
	David Wheeler, in his official as treasurer 
	) 

	TR
	) 

	TR
	) 


	CONSENT TO EXTEND THE TIME TO COMMENCE A CIVIL LAW ENFORCEMENT ACTION, SUIT, OR PROCEEDING 
	Respondents, American Muckrakers PAC and David Wheeler in his official capacity as treasurer, hereby consent to toll the statute of limitations for any civil enforcement action, suit, or proceeding that the Federal Election Commission might institute in connection with MUR 8052 pursuant to 52 U.S.C. § 30109(a) for an additional fourteen (14) days. 
	This agreement will extend the time to institute a civil law enforcement suit for an additional fourteen (14) calendar days from the expiration date of the five-year statute of limitations found at 28 U.S.C. § 2462 or any other statute of limitations or repose that may be applicable in this matter.  
	There shall be no additional consent to extend the time to institute a civil law enforcement suit without the written consent of the Respondents. 
	_________________________________ ________________________ David Wheeler, Treasurer Date 
	Figure
	FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION 
	WASHINGTON, D.C. 20463 
	August 19, 2022 
	VIA E-MAIL 
	david@firemadison.com 
	david@firemadison.com 
	david@firemadison.com 


	David B. Wheeler, Treasurer 
	American Muckrakers PAC PO Box 51 Spruce Pine, NC 28777 
	RE: MUR 8052 
	Dear Mr. Wheeler: 
	This is in response to a request for an extension to respond to the complaint filed in the above mentioned matter we received on August 19, 2022.  After considering the circumstances in this matter, the Office of General Counsel has granted the requested extension.  Accordingly, the response is due on or before the close of business October 17, 2022.  You may contact me if you have any 
	questions at cela@fec.gov. 

	Sincerely, 
	Figure
	Kathryn Ross, Paralegal Complaints Examination and Legal Administration 
	cc: Michael L. Weisel, Esq. 
	mlweisel@caplawgrp.com 
	mlweisel@caplawgrp.com 
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	RECEIVED 
	RECEIVED 
	By OGC-CELA at 4:59 pm, Oct 17, 2022 
	By OGC-CELA at 4:59 pm, Oct 17, 2022 
	CAPITALLAW 
	---GROUP--
	-

	October 17, 2022 
	Federal Election Commission 
	Office ofComplaints Examination 
	& Legal Administration 
	Attn: Katluyn Ross, Paralegal 
	Via Email: cela@fec.gov 
	Via Email: cela@fec.gov 

	Re: MUR 8052 Complaint filed f?y Jonathan M. Anderson 
	1bis letter serves to respond to the complaint filed against American Muckrackers PAC, Inc., FEC ID C00776062, alleging violations of federal campaign laws and regulations. As detailed below, we provide explanations to each alleged violation, and maintain the actions taken by American Muckrackers PAC ("AMP AC"), and Mr. Wheeler in his capacity as Treasurer, do not warrant additional review by the FEC. 
	A. Independent Expenditures 
	It is alleged that .ANIPAC failed to disclose independent expenditures for the creation and operation of the website "," content development, and social media posts. It is also alleged that the PAC's website and social media communications did not contain the required disclaimers. 
	FireBoebert.com

	AMPAC did not report an independent expenditure for the creation, maintenance, and content of the website because such activity does not constitute an "Independent Expenditure" as defined by the FEC.An independent expenditure requires both an expenditure by a person as well as express advocacy. In this case, Mr. \Vheeler, in his capacity as treasurer of AMP AC, made it clear that the creation of the website, videos, and social media posts were created by him directly. There were no third party payments, exp
	1 

	"" is the name of tl1e website, which is not by definition, express advocacy because it does not contain tl1e words associated witl1 express advocacy communications. Mr. Wheeler is compensated by AMPAC for his role as Treasurer and rnnning day to day operations of tl1e PAC, activities tl1at were properly disclosed on all required FEC repo1ts. 
	FireBoebert.com
	2 

	110I Haynes Street, Suite 205 P.O. Box 121 Raleigh, NC 27602-0121 T: 919-679-1776 F: 919-679-1783 
	AMPAC uses social media channels to engage with the public and frequently posts on both Facebook and Twitter. The videos and social media posts were not distributed to “voters” but rather posted on AMPAC’s website and social media pages and available for any person to view. There was no paid advertising or placement fees on social media channels, no vendors paid for content creation, and therefore no expenditure to report. 
	1 11 CFR § 100.16 Independent expenditure (52 U.S.C. 30101(17)). The term independent expendinue means an ei,.-penditw:e by a person for a commwucation expressly advocating the election or defeat of a clearly identified candidate that is not made in cooperation, consultation, or conce11: with, or at the request or suggestion of, a candidate, a candidate's authorized committee, or their agents, or a political pa11:y committee or its agents. 
	Bt1cklry v. Valeo 424 U.S. 1, 44, . 52 (1976). 
	2 
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	Website Disclaimers 
	Website Disclaimers 
	AMPAC has worked diligently to comply with all FEC and IRS regulations and fully understands 
	that a proper disclaimer is required on its website (11 CFR 110.11(a)). As detailed in Exhibit 1, AMPAC 
	included all required disclaimers on its website, , up until May 24, 2022 when Mr. 
	FireMadison.com

	Wheeler started a new website, FireBoebert.com, on a new platform (Wix). He stated that he was 
	Wheeler started a new website, FireBoebert.com, on a new platform (Wix). He stated that he was 

	unfamiliar with all the features on the new platform and though he added the disclaimers as a footer, 
	they were displayed in “hidden mode,” and therefore invisible on the public version of the site. As 
	soon as Mr. Wheeler realized the disclaimers were not visible, he investigated and fixed the issue (see 
	Exhibit 2 showing the current website and disclaimer) and AMPAC continues to operate in full 
	compliance with FEC and IRS rules.  
	B. Fundraising solicitations 
	AMPAC complied with all FEC and IRS regulations related to disclaimers on solicitation materials. In some cases, the exhibits presented in the complaint are the landing page prior to the donation page. You can see from Exhibits 3-6 that the required FEC and IRS disclaimers are present on all platforms where AMPAC solicits contributions.  
	Exhibit 3: FireBoebert.com/donate 
	Exhibit 3: FireBoebert.com/donate 
	Exhibit 4: paypal.com/donate 
	Exhibit 5: americanmuckrackers.com/donate 
	Exhibit 6: donorbox.org/boebertdep 

	C. Text communications 
	AMPAC did pay for and send text messages referenced in the complaint and this payment was disclosed on AMPAC’s quarterly report to the FEC. The messages themselves are not independent expenditures, but rather fundraising solicitations. These communications do not contain the specific words associated with express advocacy communications and were not targeted directly at voters, but rather donors and persons who signed up to receive communications from AMPAC. 
	Conclusion 
	As the complaint makes clear, AMPAC is not an “inexperienced organization” and has a history of filing timely reports and complying with legal requirements governing independent expenditure committees. AMPAC acknowledges there was a brief period where its website did not display the required disclaimer, this was not an intentional omission, but rather human error during the process of transitioning website platforms, and was corrected as soon as it was discovered. AMPAC has always displayed the required FEC
	Figure
	MUR 8052-2 
	Thank you for your time and attention. Sincerely, CAPITAL LAW GROUP 
	Figure
	Courtney Patterson Michael L. Weisel 
	Enclosure: Exhibits 1-6 


	CAPITALLAW 
	CAPITALLAW 
	---GROUP--
	---GROUP--
	-

	MUR 8052-3 
	EXHIBIT 1 
	P
	Figure

	Figure
	MUR 8052-4 
	EXHIBIT 2 
	Figure
	Figure
	MUR 8052-5 
	EXHIBIT 3 
	P
	Figure

	Figure
	MUR 8052-6 
	EXHIBIT 4 
	Figure
	Figure
	MUR 8052-7 
	EXHIBIT 5 
	P
	Figure

	Figure
	MUR 8052-8 
	EXHIBIT 6 
	P
	Figure

	Figure
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	FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION 1050 First Street, NE Washington, DC 20463 

	STATEMENT OF DESIGNATION OF COUNSEL 
	STATEMENT OF DESIGNATION OF COUNSEL 
	Provide one form for each Respondent/Witness 
	E-MAIL: AR/MUR/RR/P-MUR# 8052 
	cela@fec.gov 

	Name of CoW1sel: Michael L. Weisel & Cominey Patterson Film: Capital Law Group Address: 1101 Haynes Street, Suite 205 
	Office#: 919-679-177 6 Fax#: 919-679-1783 Mobile#: 
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	Jonathan M. Anderson, Esq. Maven Law Group 6501 E. Bellview Avenue, Suite 375 Englewood, CO 80111
	 RE: MUR 8052 American Muckrakers PAC 
	Dear Mr. Anderson: 
	This is in reference to the complaint filed with the Federal Election Commission on August 12, 2022, concerning American Muckrakers PAC.  Based on that complaint, after considering the circumstances of this matter and information in the response, the Commission determined to dismiss this matter and close the file effective April 29, 2024. 
	The General Counsel’s Report, which more fully explains the basis for the Commission’s decision, is enclosed. Documents related to the case will be placed on the public record today.  See Disclosure of Certain Documents in Enforcement and Other Matters, 81 Fed. Reg. 50,702 (Aug. 2, 2016). 
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	       Sincerely,
	       Lisa J. Stevenson 
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	RE: MUR 8052 American Muckrakers PAC 
	Dear Mr. Weisel and Ms. Patterson: 
	On August 15, 2022, the Federal Election Commission notified your client, American Muckrakers PAC (the “Committee”), of a complaint alleging violations of certain sections of the Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971, as amended (the “Act”).  A copy of the complaint was forwarded to your client at that time. 
	Upon further review of the allegations contained in the complaint, and information supplied by your client, the Commission, on March 28, 2024, voted to dismiss this matter and close the file effective April 29, 2024.  The General Counsel’s Report, which more fully explains the Commission’s decision, is enclosed for your information. 
	Documents related to the case will be placed on the public record today.  See Disclosure of Certain Documents in Enforcement and Other Matters, 81 Fed. Reg. 50,702 (Aug. 2, 2016). 
	       Sincerely,
	       Lisa J. Stevenson Acting General Counsel 
	BY: Wanda D. Brown 
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